
 

 

 
Meeting 
 

Cabinet 
 

Date and Time 
 

Wednesday, 19th June, 2024 at 9.30 am. 

Venue 
 

Walton Suite, Guildhall, Winchester and streamed live on 
YouTube at www.youtube.com/winchestercc. 

Note: This meeting is being held in person at the location specified above.  Members 
of the public should note that a live video feed of the meeting will be available from 
the council’s YouTube channel ( youtube.com/WinchesterCC ) during the meeting.  
 
A limited number of seats will be made available at the above named location 
however attendance must be notified to the council at least 3 working days before 
the meeting. Please note that priority will be given to those wishing to attend and 
address the meeting over those wishing to attend and observe. 
 

AGENDA 

 
PROCEDURAL ITEMS  

1.   Apologies  
 To record the names of apologies given. 

 

2.   Membership of Cabinet bodies etc.  
 To give consideration to the approval of alternative arrangements for 

appointments to bodies set up by Cabinet or external bodies, or the 
making or terminating of such appointments. 
 

3.   Disclosure of Interests  
 To receive any disclosure of interests from Members and Officers in 

matters to be discussed. 
Note: Councillors are reminded of their obligations to declare disclosable 
pecuniary interests, personal and/or prejudicial interests in accordance 
with legislation and the Council’s Code of Conduct. 
 

4.   To note any request from Councillors to make representations on an 
agenda item.  

 Note: Councillors wishing to speak address Cabinet are required to 
register with Democratic Services three clear working days before the 
meeting (contact: democracy@winchester.gov.uk or 01962 848 264).  
Councillors will normally be invited by the Chairperson to speak during the 
appropriate item (after the Cabinet Member’s introduction and questions 
from other Cabinet Members). 
 

Public Document Pack

youtube.com/winchestercc


BUSINESS ITEMS  

5.   Public Participation  
 – to note the names of members of the public wishing to speak on general 

matters affecting the District or on agenda items (in the case of the latter, 
representations will normally be received at the time of the agenda item, after 
the Cabinet Member’s introduction and any questions from Cabinet 
Members).  
NB members of the public are required to register with Democratic Services 
three clear working days before the meeting (contact: 
democracy@winchester.gov.uk or 01962 848 264).   
 

Members of the public and visiting councillors may speak at Cabinet, provided 
they have registered to speak three working days in advance.  Please contact 
Democratic Services by 5pm on 13 June 2024 via 
democracy@winchester.gov.uk or (01962) 848 264 to register to speak and 
for further details. 

6.   Minutes of the previous meeting held on 22 May 2024 (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

7.   Leader and Cabinet Members' Announcements  
 

 

8.   Procurement of Waste & Recycling Collection Vehicles (Pages 13 - 46) 

 Key Decision (CAB3452) 

9.   To note the future items for consideration by Cabinet as shown on the July 
2024 Forward Plan. (Pages 47 - 52) 

 
Laura Taylor 

Chief Executive 
All of the Council’s publicly available agendas, reports and minutes are 
available to view and download from the Council’s Website and are also open 
to inspection at the offices of the council.  As part of our drive to minimise our 
use of paper we do not provide paper copies of the full agenda pack at 
meetings. We do however, provide a number of copies of the agenda front 
sheet at the meeting which contains the QR Code opposite. Scanning this 
code enables members of the public to easily access all of the meeting papers 
on their own electronic device. Please hold your device’s camera or QR code 
App over the QR Code so that it's clearly visible within your screen and you 

will be redirected to the agenda pack. 

 

 
 
11 June 2024 
 
Agenda Contact: Nancy Graham, Senior Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01962 848 235, Email: ngraham@winchester.gov.uk 
 
*With the exception of exempt items, Agenda, reports and previous minutes are 
available on the Council’s Website www.winchester.gov.uk 
 

mailto:democracy@winchester.gov.uk
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.winchester.gov.uk/


CABINET – Membership 2024/25 
 
Chairperson: Councillor Tod (Leader and Asset Management) 
 
Councillor - Cabinet Member 
Cutler - Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance and 

Performance 
Becker - Cabinet Member for Community and Engagement 
Learney - Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency 
Porter - Cabinet Member for Place and Local Plan 
Thompson - Cabinet Member for Business and Culture 
Westwood - Cabinet Member for Housing 
 
Quorum = 3 Members 
 
Corporate Priorities: 
As Cabinet is responsible for most operational decisions of the Council, its work 
embraces virtually all elements of the Council Strategy. 
 
 
Public Participation at meetings 
Representations will be limited to a maximum of 3 minutes, subject to a maximum 15 
minutes set aside for all questions and answers.  
 
To reserve your place to speak, you are asked to register with Democratic 
Services three clear working days prior to the meeting – please see public 
participation agenda item below for further details.  People will be invited to speak in 
the order that they have registered, subject to the maximum time period allowed for 
speaking not being exceeded.  Public Participation is at the Chairperson’s discretion. 
 
 
Filming and Broadcast Notification 
This meeting will be recorded and broadcast live on the Council’s website. The 
meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Access to Information Procedure Rules within the Council's 
Constitution for further information, which is available to view on the Council’s 
website.  Please note that the video recording is subtitled but you may have to 
enable your device to see them (advice on how to do this is on the meeting page). 
 
Disabled Access 
 
Disabled access is normally available, but please phone Democratic Services on 
01962 848 264 or email democracy@winchester.gov.uk to ensure that the necessary 
arrangements are in place. 
 
Terms Of Reference 
 
Included within the Council’s Constitution (Part 3, Section 2) which is available here 
 

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=352&MId=2032&info=1&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

CABINET 
 

Wednesday, 22 May 2024 
Attendance: 
 

Councillors 
Tod (Chairperson) 

 
Cutler 
Becker 
Learney 
 

Porter 
Westwood 
 

 
Apologies for Absence:  
 
Councillors Thompson 
 
Members in attendance who spoke at the meeting 
 
Councillors Horrill and Lee 
 
Video recording of this meeting  
 

 
1.    APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies were received from Councillor Thompson as noted above. 
 

2.    DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  
 
Councillors Porter and Tod declared personal (but not prejudicial) interests in 
respect of various agenda items due to their role as County Councillors. 
 

3.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Patrick Davies spoke regarding report CAB3457 and his comments are 
summarised under the relevant minute below. 
 
Ian Tait spoke during public participation and referred to comments he had made 
at Cabinet on 23 May 2023 and 14 March 2024 regarding Section 21 no-fault 
eviction notices.  He was grateful for the Leader’s comments at the time that the 
use of such notices was not appropriate.  However he repeated concerns in 
relation to a particular situation regarding a tenant in a council owned property 
which was leased to a third party housing provider which were seeking a Section 
21 eviction notice.  He believed that the council was supporting the eviction 
notice and requested that this support end and measures be put in place to re-
home the tenant. 
 
Councillor Tod stated that he did not agree with some of the statements made by 
Mr Tait but that he was prevented from discussing the individual case raised.  He 
stated that the council was an organisation that supported people when they are 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6

https://youtu.be/RUQuogptnrU


 
 

 
 

served section 21 notices.  This was the situation here and the council’s 
commitment to ensuring that the residents of Winchester do not undergo 
homelessness and wherever possible avoid the use of temporary 
accommodation, which it was certainly intended to avoid in this case, remained 
absolute.  He advised that senior Housing Officers were available to assist the 
tenant with any paperwork and offer any other advice. 
 

4.    MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 14 MARCH 2024  
 

RESOLVED: 
 
 That the minutes of the previous meeting held 14 March 2024 be 
agreed as a correct record. 
 

 
5.    LEADER AND CABINET MEMBERS' ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
Councillor Becker made the following announcements: 

• Work had begun on the new 3G pitch for Winchester Football club; 

• The new KGV pavilion was scheduled to officially open on 30 May 2024; 

• The council was working with Winchester Ramblers group to support the 
first “Winchester Walking Weekend” from 14 to 16 June 2024; 

• The council was working with the Ukrainian community in Winchester to 
host the “Home is another country” photo exhibition at the Nutshell. 

• The Winchester Community Safety Partnership were leading on a new 
project to help tackle violence against women and girls in Winchester 
(The Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) Strategy). 

 
6.    Q4 PERFORMANCE REPORT  
 (CAB3457) 

 
Councillor Cutler introduced the report and highlighted that the next financial and 
performance monitoring report would be produced in a shorter, more concise 
format.  He stated that all councillors had been invited to comment on the 
existing set of strategic key performance indicators (KPIs) and to propose any 
new ones and to date, no comments had been received. 
 
Patrick Davies spoke during public participation as summarised briefly below. 

He reiterated concerns raised at previous meetings that he believed that 
the council was taking too many decisions in private rather than at public 
meetings.  He referred to the Appendix 3 of the report which listed 
progress on the council’s major projects, including Central Winchester 
Regeneration, Station Approach, the Local Plan and the Movement 
Strategy and believed that there had been a lack of information available 
at public meetings on such projects. 

 
Councillor Tod thanked Mr Davies for his comments which would be addressed 
during discussions below. 
 
At the invitation of the Leader, Councillors Horrill and Lee addressed Cabinet as 
summarised briefly below. 

Page 6



 
 

 
 

 
Councillor Horrill 
She highlighted that the report would usually have been considered by Scrutiny 
Committee prior to Cabinet and emphasising the importance role of scrutiny, she 
requested assurances that any comments by Scrutiny Committee on this report 
would be considered by Cabinet at a later date.  She raised two areas of 
concern, namely the failure to meet annual targets on both the retrofit 
programme and the level of complaints responded to within 10 working days, 
and asked what measures would be introduced to address this.  She also 
believed that, aside from the proposed changes in relation to the fly-tipping KPI 
the proposed changes to KPIs outlined in Appendix 4 did not reflect feedback 
from Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Councillor Lee 
He suggested that alternative methods should have been utilised to canvas all 
councillors on the proposed changes to KPIs to ensure better engagement and 
asked whether there would be another request for input into refreshed KPIs for 
2024/25?  He welcomed the proposed change to the KPI on fly-tipping but 
believed measures should be introduced to ensure incidences were dealt with in 
a more timely manner.  He suggested additional indicators were required on a 
number of matters including the introduction of electric vehicle charging points 
and the “greening” of procurement processes and supply chains.  He welcomed 
the introduction of more streamlined reports which focussed on quantitative 
measures. 
 
Councillors Cutler, Porter, Learney, Westwood and Tod responded to comments 
made, as far as they related to their Cabinet Member responsibilities.  Their 
response included emphasising that updates on the various projects and 
programmes raised had been considered in public at the appropriate meetings of 
Cabinet Committee: Regeneration, Health and Environment Policy Committee 
and Cabinet Committee: Housing. 
 
Cabinet noted that the appropriateness and relevance of KPIs would continue to 
be reviewed.  Councillor Tod confirmed the important role of Scrutiny Committee 
and that Councillor Cutler would attend the next meeting and report any 
comments back to Cabinet. 
 
Cabinet agreed to the following for the reasons set out in the report and outlined 
above. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the progress achieved during Q4 of 2023/24 be noted 
and the contents of the report be endorsed. 

2. That the performance measures in Appendix 4 of the report 
be adopted as the strategic key performance indicators (KPIs) to measure 
progress against the Council Plan 2020 to 2025 from 1 April 2024. 

 
 

Page 7



 
 

 
 

7.    ANNUAL APPOINTMENTS TO CABINET COMMITTEES, INFORMAL 
GROUPS AND FORA 24/25  

 (CAB3454) 
 
At the invitation of the Leader, Councillors Horrill and Lee addressed Cabinet as 
summarised briefly below (their comments related to both this item and report 
CAB3456 considered in the minute below). 
 
Councillor Horrill 
She welcomed the recent meeting with Councillor Tod to informally discuss the 
appointments to be made in advance of the meeting and highlighted that this 
impacted on which bodies her group had put forward nominations for.  She 
emphasised the importance of the commitment in the revised constitution that 
councillors appointed to key external bodies report regularly to council.  
 
Councillor Lee 
He concurred with the points made by Councillor Horrill in relation to the meeting 
with Councillor Tod and the importance of receiving reports from councillors to 
full Council. 
 
Councillor Tod thanked the councillors for their comments.  He advised that an 
addendum containing nominations received from the three political groups had 
been circulated to those present. 
 
In relation to the Carbon Neutrality Open Forum, Councillor Learney confirmed 
that all members were invited to all meetings.  However the expressions of 
interest from the conservative and green political groups would be noted. 
 
Cabinet agreed to the following for the reasons set out in the report and 
addendum and outlined above. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the following appointments to Cabinet Committees, 
informal group and fora be made for the 2024/25 Municipal Year: 

 
(a) Cabinet Committee: Local Plan 

Cabinet Member for Place and Local Plan (Chairperson), 
Councillors Learney and Tod 
 
Non-voting invited councillors: Councillors Brophy, Horrill, Lee, 
Rutter & Williams, (deputies: Godfrey, Laming and Wallace) 

 
(b) Cabinet Committee: Regeneration 

Leader and Cabinet Member for Asset Management (Chairperson), 
Councillors Cutler, Learney and Thompson 

 
Non-voting invited councillors: Councillors Aron, Bolton, Godfrey & 
Reach (deputies: Horrill & Laming) 

 
(c) Cabinet Committee: Housing 

Page 8



 
 

 
 

Cabinet Member for Housing (Chairperson), Councillors Becker and 
Cutler 
 
Non-voting invited councillors: Councillors Horrill, Power, Scott and 
White (deputies: Batho, Lee and Miller) 
Non-voting TACT representatives: Two representatives to be 
nominated by the TACT Board (names to be confirmed) 

 
(d) TACT Board 

Councillors Westwood and Horrill  
 
(e) Carbon Neutrality Open Forum 

Councillors Learney (Chairperson)  
 

(f) Equality, Diversion and Inclusion Forum 
Councillors Becker (Chairperson), S Achwal, Bennett, Brook and 
White (deputies permitted from any group with the agreement of 
the chair) 
 

(g) Winchester Sports and Leisure Park Advisory Board – 
Councillors Becker(Chair), Aron, Horrill and Reach 
 

(h) Central Winchester Regeneration (CWR) Project Board – 
Councillors Tod and Cutler 
 

(i) Strategic Asset Purchase Scheme Board 
Councillors Tod, Cutler and Thompson 
 

(j) Treasury Investment Group 
Councillors Tod, Cutler and Thompson 
 

(k) Kings Barton Forum  
Councillors: Cramoysan (Chairperson), Batho, Cunningham, Eve, 
Godfrey, Morris and Porter, (Deputies: Horrill, Learney and Rutter) 
 

(l) West of Waterlooville Forum –  
Councillors: Cutler  (Chairperson), Bennett, Chamberlain and 
Langford-Smith (Deputies: Brook, Clear and Porter) 
 

(m) North Whiteley Development Forum – 
Councillors: V Achwal (Chairperson), S Achwal, Lee, Miller, Porter 
and Small (Deputies: Bolton, Chamberlain and Latham) 
 
2. That the following roles be appointed to (paragraph 4.3 

refers): 
 

a)       Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Member Champion – 
Councillor Bennett 

b)       Lead Cabinet Member for Equality, Diversity and Inclusion - 
Councillor Becker. 

 

Page 9



 
 

 
 

3. That Councillor Tippett-Cooper be appointed as “Sanctuary 
Champion” (paragraph 4.1 refers). 
 

4. That Councillor Laming be appointed as “Armed Forces 
Champion” (paragraph 4.2 refers). 
 

5. That the good work of the Whiteley Forum is noted and that 
the six month trigger for dissolution of the forum has been reached and 
terms of reference are to be agreed with the Whiteley Town Council for 
ongoing public engagement during the continued development in the 
area. 

 
8.    ANNUAL APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 24/25  
 (CAB3456) 

 
In relation to comments made by Councillors Horrill and Lee under the previous 
minute above, Councillor Tod confirmed that he would ensure reports from 
relevant councillors on their outside body appointments would be submitted to 
council. 
 
Councillor Tod advised that an addendum containing nominations received from 
the three political groups had been circulated to those present. 
 
In relation to the Southampton International Airport Consultative Committee, it 
was agreed to investigate whether interested members could attend committee 
meetings, in addition to the formal appointments set out below. 
 
Cabinet agreed to the following for the reasons set out in the report and 
addendum and outlined above. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the following appointments to external bodies be made 
for the 2024/25 Municipal Year (unless stated otherwise):  

 
i. Central Hampshire Road Safety Council – Councillor Greenberg 
ii. Citizens Advice Winchester District (until May 2027) 

– Councillor Becker  
iii. Council for the Protection of Rural England (CPRE) Hampshire 

Planning & Policy Committee (until May 2027) – Councillor Small 
iv. Hampshire & IOW Local Government Association (HIOWLGA) – 

Leader and Deputy Leader (Councillors Tod and Cutler) 
v. Hampshire County Council Annual Meeting with Parish & District 

Councils regarding public transport issues – Cabinet Member with 
responsibility for Transport (Councillor Learney) 

vi. Hampshire Cultural Trust – Cabinet Member with responsibility for 
Culture (Councillor Thompson) (Trustee) and Councillor Porter 
(Observer) 

vii. Hampshire Homechoice Board – Cabinet Member with responsibility 
for Housing (Councillor Westwood) 

Page 10



 
 

 
 

viii. Hampshire Rural Forum – Cabinet Member with responsibility for the 
Economy (Councillor Thompson) 

ix. Hospital of St Cross and Almshouses of Noble Poverty (until May 
2029) - Councillor Clear (Nominative trustee) 

x. Unit 12 CIC (formerly Integr8 CIC) – Cabinet Member with 
responsibility for the Community (Councillor Becker ) 

xi. Local Government Association – Leader and Deputy Leader 
(Councillors Tod and Cutler) 

xii. Partnership for South Hampshire (PfSH) Joint Committee – Leader 
and Deputy Leader (Councillors Tod and Cutler) 

xiii. PATROL (Parking and Traffic Regulations Outside London) 
Adjudication Joint Committee – Cabinet Member with responsibility 
for transport/parking – Councillor Learney 

xiv. Police and Crime Panel (until May 2025, confirmed annually) – 
Councillor V Achwal (Councillor Williams) 

xv. Project Integra Management Board – Cabinet Member with 
responsibility for Waste (Councillor Learney) plus Councillor Tod 
(deputy) 

xvi. River Hamble Harbour Management Committee (until May 2025, 
confirmed annually) – Councillor V Achwal and Councillor Williams 
(deputy) 

xvii. South East England Councils (SEEC) – Leader and Deputy Leader 
(Councillors Tod and Cutler) 

xviii. South East Employers – Chair of Audit & Governance Committee 
(Councillor Morris)  

xix. Southampton International Airport Consultative Committee – Cabinet 
Member with responsibility for Transport (Councillor Learney) and 
Councillor Bennett (deputies Councillors Reach and Pett) 

xx. Tourism South East – Cabinet Member with responsibility for 
Tourism (Councillor Thompson) 

xxi. Venta Living ltd (the Council’s housing company) – Councillors 
Batho & Pett (company directors) 

xxii. Welborne Community Forum – Councillor Chamberlain (deputies 
Councillor Cutler and Clear) 

xxiii. WinACC – Observer - Cabinet Member with responsibility for 
Environment (Councillor Learney)  

xxiv. Winchester Business Improvement District (BID) – Cabinet Member 
with responsibility for Economy (Councillor Thompson) 

xxv. Winchester Beacon – Cabinet Member with responsibility for 
Housing (Councillor Westwood) 

xxvi. Winchester Charity School Education Foundation (until May 2027) – 
Councillors Latham & Tod 

xxvii. Winchester Housing Trust (until May 2027) – Councillor Batho 
(observer)  

xxviii. Winchester Sports Stadium Management Committee – Cabinet 
Member with responsibility for Sport (Councillor Becker) and 
Councillor S Achwal 

 
2. That representatives be reminded of their responsibilities 

whilst representing the Council on an external organisation, as 

Page 11



 
 

 
 

summarised in Paragraphs 1.6 – 1.10 of the report and in the Guidance 
regarding serving on Outside Bodies. 

 
 

9.    FUTURE ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION BY CABINET  
 
At the invitation of the Leader, Councillor Lee addressed Cabinet as summarised 
briefly below. 

He queried whether the forward plan included items beyond the legally 
required 28 days, for example the proposals for decisions on the local 
plan were not listed.  He also requested further clarification on the 
delegation of treasury management decisions and in particular relating to 
any climate and social governance approach being adopted by the county 
council. 

 
Councillors Cutler and Tod clarified which council meetings were responsible for 
agreeing the Treasury Management Strategy and monitoring decisions, 
emphasising that there was opportunity for members to make comments then.  
In addition, it was confirmed that the new format forward plan did include items 
beyond the 28 day legally required timetable where dates were known. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the list of future items as set out in the Forward Plan for June 

2024 be noted. 
 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 9.30 am and concluded at 11.00 am 
 
 
 

Chairperson 

Page 12

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD272&ID=272&RPID=1167377
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD272&ID=272&RPID=1167377


  
 

CAB3452 
CABINET 

 

REPORT TITLE: PROCUREMENT OF WASTE & RECYCLING COLLECTION 
VEHICLES 
 
19 JUNE 2024 

REPORT OF CABINET MEMBER: Cllr Kelsie Learney, Cabinet Member for Climate 
Change   

Contact Officer:  Campbell Williams Tel No: 07591 814617  
Email:  cawilliams@winchester.gov.uk 
 
WARD(S):  ALL 
 

 

 
PURPOSE 

The council is on a journey to increase recycling rates in the district, and this report 

brings forward the next stage. Specifically, the introduction of kerbside food waste 

recycling and the need to procure vehicles to enable this by the 31st March 2026. 

This will build upon the council recent success of increasing recycling rates since 

2019, including the introduction of kerbside glass collections, improved garden waste 

service, and the weekly kerbside collection of batteries and small electrical items. 

 

Cabinet agreed in report CAB3439 that it would seek to introduce a separate food 

waste collection service by 31st March 2026 through the council’s current contractor 

Biffa. This is a requirement of the Environment Act and supports the Council’s 

commitment to the priority of going greener faster. Introducing a food waste service 

could reduce the district’s carbon emissions by 1,900 tCO2e per year.  

 

This report sets out the basis and rationale for the procurement of nine 12 tonne 

specialist Hydro-treated Vegetable Oil fuelled food waste vehicles, utilising the New 

Burdens capital funding provided through DEFRA.  

 

The report further sets out the rationale for the procurement of one electric RCV and 

necessary works at the Depot to support the charging of this vehicle. 

 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 8

mailto:cawilliams@winchester.gov.uk


  CAB3452 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS - That Cabinet: 

1. Agree to procure, through Biffa, nine 12 tonne food waste vehicles, to 
operate on Hydro-treated Vegetable Oil, at an estimated cost of up to 
£1.34m to be funded by the New Burdens capital grant. 

 
2. Agree to provide through the contract with Biffa an electric refuse 

collection vehicle for the new route to be introduced in Autumn 2024.  
 

3. Agree that the annual revenue cost of £36k to cover the cost of the electric 
Refuse Collection Vehicle, be funded by an existing waste budget.  
 

4. Agree, subject to the introduction of an electric Refuse Collection Vehicle 
to the waste fleet, to the use of up to £30k from this project’s approved 
capital allocation to fund infrastructure requirements at the Council’s depot 
to enable charging of the electric Refuse Collection Vehicle. 

 
 

 

Page 14



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

IMPLICATIONS: 
 
1 COUNCIL PLAN OUTCOME  

1.1 Tackling the Climate Emergency and Creating a Greener District 

1.2 Waste management and recycling is a key part of tackling the climate 
emergency and creating a greener district.  Winchester City Council has 
ambitions to significantly increase its recycling, reduce waste and improve its 
carbon performance, which will support the ambitions in the Council Plan of 
becoming greener faster. 

1.3 The Environment Act 2021 requires a minimum range of materials to be 
recycled, including food waste. As the provisions of the Act come into force, 
this will increase the range of materials that can be recycled in Winchester 
and will enable residents and businesses to reduce the amount of waste each 
household produces, which in turn will be better for the environment.  

1.4 Increased recycling will reduce the amount of waste sent to landfill or 
incineration, thereby reducing carbon emissions. Stopping waste from 
decomposing in a landfill, can reduce harmful gases, such as methane from 
food waste, being created and released into the atmosphere. Methane is a 
potent greenhouse gas and this action to reduce its production will benefit the 
environment. Likewise, reuse of recycled materials will reduce the need for 
carbon intensive raw material extraction and conserve limited resources. 

1.5 Hydrotreated Vegetable Oil (HVO) as a replacement for diesel fuel in the 
waste and recycling fleet has been introduced from May 2024. This is an 
interim solution while other net zero solutions are explored. From verified 
sustainable sources, HVO offers up to 94% reduction in carbon emissions and 
up to 50% reduction in particulates.  It contributes to the circular economy and 
avoids extraction and combustion of fossil fuels. Operating all 17 existing 
frontline waste and recycling vehicles in this way will result in a reduction of 
683 tCO2e per year, reducing the council’s current carbon footprint by an 
estimated 20%. 

1.6 Removing the food waste currently mixed in with resident’s residual waste, 
and recycling it, could save the district circa 1,900 tonnes of CO2e per year. A 
full fleet operated on HVO to collect the food waste will emit only 3 tonnes of 
CO2e per year by comparison. The importance of this is that whilst the council 
is on a journey to eliminate carbon from its operations as much as possible, 
this needs to be balanced against the overall benefit of introducing the service 
as soon as practicable.  

1.7 Vibrant Local Economy 

1.8 Government initiatives, Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) and Deposit 
Return Scheme (DRS) will introduce changes to businesses that have to be 
implemented in a limited window of time. There is little information available to 
businesses at this time, but the council will offer support and information as it 

Page 15



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

is available. Businesses are likely to need support and education to help 
achieve compliance.  

1.9 Living Well 

1.10 The Waste and Resources Action Programme (WRAP) have reported that in 
2021/22, households in the UK threw away 4.7 million tonnes of edible food 
valued at £17 Billion, equivalent to 12% of the food we purchase. A UK 
household wastes on average the equivalent of eight meals a weeki.   

1.11 Introducing a collection of food waste separate to residual (black bin) waste, 
will allow our residents to quantify the amount of food waste they produce. It 
will raise awareness of the benefits of buying less (saving money) and using 
more, contributing to an overall reduction in waste, a reduction in residual 
black bin refuse and an increase in recycling rates. 

1.12 Your Services, Your Voice 

1.13 The views of residents are important as, alongside the council’s own 
ambitions of improving recycling for residents and reducing waste, the Council 
must put in place a new waste and recycling service to meet changes in 
national legislation and changes in disposal arrangements by Hampshire 
County Council.  A public consultation survey was undertaken in autumn 2023 
to seek resident views on recycling to help inform the new waste strategy. 
This was previously reported to Cabinet in February 2024 (CAB3439 refers). 

1.14 Whilst the consultation survey in autumn 2023 addressed the ‘what’, further 
consultation and engagement is planned in order to understand the ‘how’.  
Potential questions could include, for example, the types of bins used for food 
waste. This will inform possible solutions so that implementation can be 
achieved successfully.  

2 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

2.1 It has been confirmed by DEFRA that capital funding will be provided for 
investments after 31 March 2023 and for running costs from 1 April 2026 
onwards under the New Burdens doctrine.  Extract from a letter from DEFRA 
to the Chief Executive received on 9 January 2024 states: 

 
“I would like to set out when you should expect all sources of funding in 
relation to Simpler Recycling. It is our intention that: 

• Capital transitional costs, as above (intended for the purchase of 
food bins (this includes internal kitchen caddies, external kerbside 
caddies and communal bins) and food waste collection vehicles), 
will be funded in the 2023/24 financial year.  

 

• Resource transitional funding will be provided from the 2024/25 
financial year.  

 

Page 16



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

• Ongoing resource/revenue costs will be provided from 1 April 2026 
and will be provided to all waste collection authorities, including 
those that have already fully implemented a food waste collection 
service. 

 

• We are currently calculating transitional and ongoing resource costs 
and will be writing to you on these in due course.” 

 
2.2 The Council is awaiting further details of transitional funding from the 

Government, particularly in relation to the introduction of a food waste 
collection service by 1st April 2026.  
 

2.3 DEFRA has allocated capital funding of £1.38m to Winchester City Council, 
for the purchase of assets required to deliver the new food waste collection 
service. However, this allocation is short of the actual vehicle and receptacle 
costs required and as such an additional £0.4m budget, funded by prudential 
borrowing, has been presented in the capital programme in 2025/26.  
 

2.4 The total capital budget for this project is, therefore, DEFRA grant funding of 
£1.38m plus the £0.4m, totalling £1.78m.  
 

2.5 The council has appealed the Government’s capital funding allocation for the 
district but has been unsuccessful in its appeal and DEFRA have confirmed 
that no additional capital allocation will be provided. The sum provided by 
DEFRA is due to an assumption that all authorities will use less expensive, 
7.5t trucks, whereas due to the size of Winchester, the location of the transfer 
stations, and the anticipated participation rates it is impractical to use 7.5t 
trucks. This would require the service to make multiple trips to transfer 
stations and increase both the costs and carbon impact of running the service 
due to higher mileage.  For these reasons, Winchester will need to invest in 
12t trucks, which come at a higher cost. This does not affect the decisions 
being sought in this report. 

 
Table 2.5 

Capital Assets required Funds 
Allocated by 
DEFRA 

Estimated 
cost plus 
contingency 

Kitchen caddies (plus spares)  £136,641 £86,730 

Kerbside caddies (plus spares)  £264,935 £221,760 

Communal wheeled bins (plus spares)  £59,758 £85,313 

Vehicles (Plus spares)  £920,700 £1,336,500 

Infrastructure to support 1 EV  £30,000 

Total  £1,382,034 £1,760,303 

Total cost £1,760,303 

Deficit of DEFRA funding -£378,269 

Remaining Capital budget £21,732 

 

Page 17



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

2.6 The financial costs and benefits of various procurement methods has been 

modelled and the resulting recommendation is for the council to procure the 

vehicles outright, through Biffa, and then lease them back to Biffa to use for 

the operation of our contract.  The electric refuse collection vehicle will be 

procured by Biffa as part of the existing contract. The council will work closely 

with Biffa to benefit from the economies of scale they will obtain from placing 

large order of vehicles for multiple councils. The estimated cost for the fleet of 

nine vehicles is up to £1.34m. Further capital costs for the remaining assets 

such as caddies, bins and EV charging infrastructure will be funded by the 

remainder of the DEFRA allocation and from prudential borrowing, up to the 

agreed limit of £1.78m as set out in the capital programme. Expected capital 

costs are set out in Table 2.5 above and in Appendix A. 

2.7 Details of how the food waste service will be implemented are yet to be 

developed but it is anticipated, based on current available modelling, that it 

will cost around £1.4m per annum additional revenue cost (including capital 

financing costs and additional space costs) to the council to run this service.  

The cost of the food waste service and associated contractual arrangements 

will be reported to cabinet in Autumn 2024 once further detail is established. 

2.8 This report is seeking to place an order for vehicles at this early stage to give 
the council the best chance of securing the required vehicles in what is likely 
to be a very busy, supply limited market.  
 

2.9 A proportion of this ongoing increased operational cost is expected to be 
covered by the ‘New Burdens’ Funding. It is estimated that 80% of reasonable 
costs will be covered. No indicative funding figures have yet been provided by 
Government for these costs.  
 

2.10 Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) payments for packaging will be 

provided to local authorities, where packaging producers are made 

responsible for the costs of collecting and managing packaging waste through 

efficient and effective services. Initial estimates are that local authorities in 

England will collectively receive payments totalling in the region of £900 

million per annum for managing household packaging waste. Details of 

funding have not yet been released. 

2.11 Additional space will be required for the storage of the vehicles. Whilst the 
council has assets in the vicinity that could be deployed to support this 
additional space requirement, subject to assessment and agreement, the 
space will then not be able to be let externally and its use would therefore 
reduce potential letting income to the council. 

2.12 Biffa have confirmed that the additional costs of a pilot electric RCV will be 
£36k per annum, with no annual uplifts, either to the end of the current 
contract in 2029 or for the full life of the vehicle. These additional revenue 
costs can be funded from existing revenue environment budgets. There are 

Page 18

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/extended-producer-responsibility-for-packaging-who-is-affected-and-what-to-do


  CAB3452 
 

 

 

also forecast capital infrastructure costs to accommodate the electric vehicle 
of £30k. 

3 LEGAL AND PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS  

3.1 The Environment Act 2021 requires a minimum set of materials to be 
collected separately from households for recycling.  The core recyclables 
include glass bottles and containers, paper and card, metals, plastic bottles, 
plastic pots, tubs and trays and food and drink cartons.  Plastic film will be 
introduced in 2027.  It also requires a separate food waste collection from 
households with a minimum collection frequency of weekly. 

3.2 All households and property types, including communal properties, and flats 
above shops will need to have access to the food waste service and be able 
to present the core recyclable materials for collection. The project will need to 
consider the best way to deliver these new services to everyone. 

3.3 Details were confirmed in the ‘Simpler Recycling’ announcement of 21 
October 2023 and the Government expressed an intention to introduce an 
exemption to enable the co-collection of dry mixed recyclables (Co-mingled), 
which has been confirmed in a DEFRA statement in May 2024. 

3.4 Changes to the existing collection service proposed in this report can be 
accommodated via contract variations to the existing waste collection contract 
with Biffa Waste Services Limited.  External legal advice has been sought, 
which confirms that variations to introduce a separate food waste collection 
and additional recycling materials may be made under the terms of the 
existing contract and are compliant with the requirements of the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015.  

3.5 All procurement activities undertaken by the council will be conducted in 
accordance with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR 2015), the new 
Procurement Act if applicable (due to come into force October 2024) and the 
Council’s Contract Procedure rules as relevant.  Further legal support will be 
sought prior to any contract variations being agreed.    

3.6 The capital grant provided by the government under the Food Waste Capital 
Grant Determination 31/7069 requires that funding "may be used only for the 
purposes that a capital receipt may be used for in accordance with regulations 
made under section 11 of the Local Government Act 2003”. As such, the 
ownership and payment structure associated with the purchase of the 
vehicles is to be consistent with such purposes.  

Page 19



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

4 WORKFORCE IMPLICATIONS  

4.1 A core project management team has been established to maintain the 

project within the bounds of the agreed time, scope, and budget. Financial 

resources have been allocated to the project and recruitment of an additional 

communications officer is underway. Further resource, such as Recycling 

Officers to support the education campaign, will be identified with detailed 

costs submitted to the appropriate decision-making bodies as required.  

4.2 A continued commitment of time and effort will be required to run an effective 

service post-implementation and maintain a high standard of communications 

with residents to get the best recycling rates possible. Changes to the 

recycling collection service have been modelled.  Outcomes suggest that the 

proposed solution will require additional operational staff to run the service 

and administrative staff to implement the changes.  The operational staff will 

be employed by the Council’s collection service contractor Biffa. 

5 PROPERTY AND ASSET IMPLICATIONS   

5.1 The collection service operates out of the Barfield Close Depot together with 
ID Verde for the grounds’ maintenance service. The depot is currently at 
capacity and the mandatory requirement for a food waste collection means 
that additional vehicles are needed.   

5.2 New/increased depot space will need to be made available.  Facilities owned 
by the council in the vicinity of the current depot offer an opportunity to meet 
this requirement and are currently being investigated with a view to 
developing them. Early indications suggest that the cost of additional depot 
space may be included in the New Burdens funding, however, the amount is 
still unknown. Any new site will require a lease with the waste contractor, 
Biffa. 

6 CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION  

6.1 A presentation covering the key elements of this report was presented at 
Scrutiny Committee on 6th June 2024. The minutes from the scrutiny meeting 
are shown in Appendix B. 

6.2 Issues raised at this meeting have been considered, including ensuring that  
the business case which is included in full at Appendix A  includes  the  detail 
on how the recommendation on the vehicle type for the new food waste 
service was reached. 

6.3 Innovations mentioned at the Scrutiny meeting such as adding solar panels to 
the trucks, or the use of hydrogen as part of a fuel mix to increase miles per 
gallon have been considered and discussed with our service provider, Biffa. 
Following due consideration of several factors, including the urgency to 
procure the vehicles to meet the governments deadline for service 
implementation, it is recommended to keep the procurement as simple as 

Page 20



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

possible, therefore this is not to be pursued. However, it is noted that vehicles 
have a finite lifespan, and alternatives can be considered when the fleet 
needs to be replaced. This will allow the sustainable vehicle market time to 
mature while enabling a reliable service that delivers significant carbon and 
environmental benefits to commence in the interim.   

6.4 A public consultation was undertaken in autumn 2023 to seek views from 
residents on their recycling habits and preferences; further details on this can 
be found above in ‘your service: your voice’ and were reported to Cabinet in 
February 2024 (CAB3439 refers). 

6.5 Additional consultation about the operational details of a food waste collection 
service will be held in the autumn 2024 to consider aspects such as the types 
and sizes of bins with a view to ensuring a service is available to everyone, 
including those on assisted collections and living in more difficult to access 
properties such as flats and communal households. 

6.6 A comprehensive campaign plan will be developed to support the introduction 
of the new food waste service. This will include education on how to 
participate and top tips on how to develop and maintain good recycling habits. 
Importantly, the council aims to develop strategies to help residents to 
produce less waste by buying less and using more, which could result in 
households saving money, improving recycling rates and reducing residual 
waste.  It will be important to maintain this educational and encouragement 
work based on the reduce, recycle, and reuse philosophy, which will require 
additional staff resources. This will be considered in a future cabinet paper in 
the autumn.  

6.7 A Member’s briefing will be held in the Autumn to update Members on the 
wider changes to waste management before a further report is submitted to 
Cabinet later in 2024. 

7 ENVIRONMENTAL CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 Winchester City Council has an opportunity to improve its waste and recycling 
collections and performance and, by doing so, to reduce its impact on climate 
change. Any changes will consider current viable environmental benefits and 
impacts as part of the process.   

7.2 There is a national requirement to increase the range of dry recycling 
materials collected from households and to collect food waste separately. This 
change will benefit the environment by reducing the quantity of waste sent to 
landfill and Energy from Waste. 

7.3 The council is using Hydrotreated Vegetable Oil (HVO) in its general 
collection fleet as this is a low carbon fuel, as an interim solution while full 
electrification is considered. From verified sustainable sources, HVO offers up 
to 94% reduction in carbon emissions and up to 50% reduction in 
particulates.  It contributes to the circular economy and avoids extraction and 
combustion of fossil fuels. Operating all frontline waste, recycling, and food 

Page 21



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

waste vehicles in this way would result in a reduction of 905 tonnes of CO2e 
per year. Removing food waste from the residual waste stream and recycling 
it saves an estimated additional 1,900 tonnes CO2e per year. 

7.4 Care and attention has been given to ensuring that the supply of HVO has a 
fully validated and auditable supply chain – manufactured only from primary 
waste sources and not causing deforestation and environmental damage. The 
council has declared a nature emergency and highlighted the need to protect 
natural environments, and the biodiversity of both plants and animals from the 
negative impacts of human activity. To further support this aim, only HVO 
suppliers who meet the requirements of the International Sustainability and 
Carbon Certification (ISCC) and the Zemo Partnership Renewable Fuels 
Assurance Scheme (RFAS) have been used.   

7.5 To prepare for the changes to recycling collections, including food waste, and 
to rebalance routes following the growth of new housing in the district, our 
service provider, Biffa, has undertaken a re-routing exercise. The proposed 
re-route would result in a reduction in distances travelled equalling 35,000 
miles per year, with new routes optimised for efficiency and the reduced 
milage providing an additional carbon saving of circa 13%. To service the re-
route, an additional round with one additional vehicle will be required. There is 
potential to introduce a fully electric recycling collection vehicle to the fleet, 
rather than one operated on HVO. This would be a fully operational vehicle 
which explores the practicalities of operating an electric vehicle across 
Winchester, as a stepping stone to further electrification. This will be subject 
to costs and infrastructure requirements. These are set out in section 13 
below. 

7.6 The council has worked with the Association of Public Service Excellence 
(APSE) to understand the electrical supply capacity at the Depot, and the 
work required to enable electric vehicles to be accommodated. This is set out 
in section 13.8 – 13.13 below. 

8 PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY 

8.1 An Equality Impact Assessment was completed for the project in July 2023 
covering the consultation and engagement required for any changes to the 
waste and recycling service (CAB3409 refers). A further Equality Impact 
Assessment will be developed for the delivery strategy and submitted to a future 
cabinet once the details of the service have been determined.  

8.2 An Equality Impact Assessment is not required for the decisions in this report. 

9 DATA PROTECTION IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

9.1 Not required for the decisions in this report. 

10 RISK MANAGEMENT 

Page 22



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

10.1 There is a full project risk register which is a working document and will be 
reviewed and updated throughout the project life cycle as part of the project 
governance.   

 

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Financial 

Exposure 

Government funding to support 

required changes will provide some 

mitigation to the increased costs of 

new requirements. 

 

Mitigation of these issues will be 

achieved by aligning decision 

making on implementation with 

confirmation of Government funding 

and better understanding of financial 

exposure. 

 

Any changes to the collection 

service may increase costs. These 

costs would need to be fully 

considered as part of the financial 

modelling to ensure the most cost-

effective solution is achieved. 

 

There is a risk of the Council being 

unable to determine value for 

money where the new service is to 

be implemented as a variation to an 

existing contract.  

 

To mitigate against this, the Council 

will review the evidence of supplier 

costs, benchmark the new service 

cost proposal against the current 

contract costs and / or those 

declared by other local authorities 

and procure the services of a waste 

management specialist to evaluate 

the proposed options and determine 

the best value (financial, social, and 

environmental) options. 

 

 

Introducing a new separate 

food waste collection will have 

positive environmental 

benefits.  

 

Support funding from the 

Government will give the 

council a cost-effective 

opportunity to introduce 

positive changes to its 

household collections. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Exposure to 

challenge 

External legal advice has been 

commissioned to help steer the 

process to ensure it is robust. 

 

Introducing a new food waste 
recycling service is a government 
requirement under Environment Act 
2021. 
 

Engagement with residents through 

a resident’s survey has been 

undertaken at an early stage of 

developing the new waste strategy 

for households. Consultation and 

engagement will continue to be 

undertaken as the strategy is 

developed and agreed to 

understand residents’ needs and 

issues with any changes to the 

waste and recycling collections 

system. 

Good engagement and 

communication with residents 

will ensure that opportunities 

as well as issues are identified, 

and actions taken. Comms will 

involve education on how and 

why we should recycle as well 

as tips to reduce waste and 

save money.   

Innovation Consideration of the type of 

collection vehicle for the new food 

waste service is currently underway. 

This needs to consider practical 

considerations such as vehicle 

ranges, accessibility, and supply of 

fuel, along with whole life costs of 

the vehicles. 

 

Use of HVO fuel for the current 

waste collection vehicles is now 

underway. 

Procurement of new vehicles 

provides an opportunity to 

explore the use of low carbon 

vehicles and fuels. 

Future HVO 

supply and 

accreditation 

All suppliers must be ISCC and 

RFAS accredited as a minimum to 

ensure a genuinely sustainable 

product. Confirm that no palm oil 

sources have been used before 

purchase. Monitor the HVO market 

and confirm guarantee of supply for 

full duration of contract before 

purchase. 

As accreditation improves, 

ensure our suppliers provide 

the best assurance available. 

Page 24



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Reputation Waste and recycling collections 

affect every resident. Appropriate 

engagement with residents and 

members is being factored into the 

project timeline at an early stage to 

be considered in development of 

service delivery models. 

 

Engagement with residents will seek 

to identify key issues which will help 

to shape the new service. 

 

Undertaking the process set out in 

the report will contribute towards 

compliance with national and 

regional requirements. 

Improving carbon and 

recycling performance is a key 

aim of this project. Improving 

carbon and recycling 

performance would have a 

positive impact on reputation. 

Achievement 

of outcome 

The council has a statutory duty to 

deliver a new waste management 

service and has committed 

resources to do so. This project will 

develop and deploy a collection 

system that considers 

environmental benefits, affordability, 

customer needs, and statutory 

requirements.  

With the opportunity of external 

funding, it allows an 

opportunity to review current 

collection arrangements with 

the intent to improve the 

service and most importantly, 

recycling rates. 

 

Property Additional food waste vehicles will 

need to be stored, requiring more 

depot space.  

The Council has assets in the 

vicinity that could be deployed 

to support this additional space 

requirement subject to 

assessment and agreement. 

Community 

Support 

Consultation and engagement 

exercises will engage with 

households and community groups 

to ensure all views are captured and 

considered.  

Building on previous 

consultation with residents, the 

Council aims to arrange focus 

groups to specifically support 

rollout to harder to reach 

properties such as flats above 

shops and communal 

properties.     

Page 25



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

Risk  Mitigation Opportunities 

Timescales Specialist food waste vehicles have 

a long lead-in time to procure and 

there will be a very high demand 

nationally for these vehicles 

therefore this process is being 

started as soon possible.  

 

Early procurement of readily 

available vehicles to ensure 

priority and timely delivery of 

vehicles within the government 

deadline of 31st March 2026. 

This will include active 

management of this 

procurement - order 

acknowledgement, regular 

progress updates, prompt 

notification of delays, 

shortages, and mitigation 

plans. 

 

Procurement of vehicles, whilst 

a long lead in time, will not pre-

determine the outcome of any 

consultations on the 

operational details of the 

scheme.  

Project 

capacity 

A core project management team 

has been established to maintain 

the project within the bounds of the 

agreed time, scope, and budget. 

Financial resources have been 

allocated to the project and any 

further resource will be identified 

with detailed costs submitted to the 

appropriate decision-making bodies 

as required. 

Opportunities for knowledge 

transfer into the council will be 

maximised when external 

consultancy is required. 

 

 
11 SUPPORTING INFORMATION: 

Background 

11.1 The Environment Act 2021 introduced requirements relating to recycling to 
improve the range of materials that can be recycled.  The government 
announcement, entitled ‘Simpler Recycling’ (21/10/2023), set out some of the 
details regarding the implementation, including the requirement for a weekly 
collection of food waste and the separate collection of a wider range of 
recyclable materials. 

11.2 The Council is required to implement changes to its waste and recycling 
collection service by 31 March 2026 in order to comply with legislation, 

Page 26



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

including introducing a food waste collection service. The government is 
providing new burden funding and guidance on delivering these new 
requirements. 

11.3 The proposed changes to the waste and recycling service have been regularly 
reported to Cabinet. In February 2024 (CAB3439) a broad discussion was 
held in this public meeting. Comments were received from both Council 
Members and the public and addressed by the project team. Full details as 
well as a recording of the meeting can be found here. 

11.4 In February 2024 Cabinet agreed;  

1. that, as a result of resident feedback and the options appraisal set out in 
11.45, the preferred option is a co-mingled recycling collection service 
collecting a wider range of materials and that Hampshire County Council 
would be advised accordingly. 

2. to seek to introduce a separate collection of food waste by 31st March 
2026 with the Councils current contractor Biffa, including to provide quoted 
prices for the required food waste collection vehicles. 

3. that the Council will pursue the current lowest carbon viable options as a 
priority for service delivery. 

12 Introduction of a Food Waste Collection Service 

12.1 The Council is committed to introduce a food waste collection service in line 
with the national timetable set by Government that a weekly food waste 
collection must be in place by 31 March 2026.  Initial community consultation 
has taken place to support the development of a scheme and further 
engagement will follow.  

Procurement of Vehicles 

12.2 To prepare for the changes to recycling collections, including food waste, and 
to rebalance routes following the growth of new housing in the district, Biffa 
has undertaken a round re-routing exercise to determine the specific vehicle 
requirements and indicative costs for the new food waste service. This has 
confirmed the requirement for a fleet of nine 12 tonne specialist food waste 
vehicles to operate the service.  

12.3 ESPO have provided indicative costs for food waste vehicles of a standard 
specification. Biffa have also provided indicative costs for vehicles fitted out to 
their upgraded specification – these include items such as 360o in cab 
cameras. The indicative costs are set out in Table 12.4 below.  

12.4 Due to the length of lead-in time for vehicles, suppliers will only confirm the 
exact costs once the vehicles are in the assembly line. This is due to 
fluctuating material costs such as steel and electrical components. For this 
reason, it is prudent to add a 10% contingency to the vehicle costs.  

Page 27

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=4297


  CAB3452 
 

 

 

Table 12.4 Indicative costs for vehicles: 

Vehicle Type Current Cost per vehicle + 10% contingency 

Hillend Engineering Micro XHD 

mounted onto a DAF 12 tonne 

GVW chassis, standard 

specification 

£131,271 £144,398 

DAF XB 210 FA 4x2 Rigid, 12t 

Chassis. Orus 7 Body, 

standard specification 

£121,855  £134,041 

Biffa vehicle costs – 12t diesel 

food waste vehicle with 

upgraded specification 

£135,000 £148,500 

 

12.5 Diesel food waste collection vehicles, which can be run on Hydrotreated 
Vegetable Oil (HVO), are readily available and in high demand as other 
authorities in the country will require similar vehicles. These types of vehicles 
have been in use for many years and have well documented lifecycle and 
maintenance schedules.  

12.6 From verified sustainable sources, HVO fuel offers up to 94% reduction in 
carbon emissions and up to 50% reduction in particulates. Operating all 
existing frontline waste and recycling vehicles and the new food waste 
vehicles on HVO rather than diesel fuel would result in a reduction of up to 
905 tonnes of CO2e per year. 

12.7 Modelling undertaken by consultants, WSP, also considered the carbon 
impact of all the recycling options explored. Simply by collecting food waste 
and recycling this separately to the residual waste could result in a savings of 
circa 1,900 tonnes of CO2e per year. It should be noted that the carbon 
emissions produced by HVO powered vehicles are significantly smaller than 
the carbon saved by introducing a food waste collection service. The 
importance of this is that whilst the council is on a journey to eliminate carbon 
from its operations as much as possible, this needs to be balanced against 
the overall benefit of introducing the service as soon as practicable. The 
potential carbon savings are shown in the table below:  

Table 12.7 – Modelling demonstrating a potential carbon reduction of 1612 

tonnes CO2e annually by introducing food waste collections. Note that this 

modelling was done using diesel powered vehicles, HVO fuelled vehicles 

would provide an even greater reduction 1946 tonnes CO2e annually. 

Page 28



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

Modelling, based on diesel 
powered vehicles 

Vehicle 
carbon 

Material 
carbon 

Net impact tonnes 
CO2e annually 

Adding pots, tubs, and trays to 
recycling collections but no food 
waste collection  

319 161 480 

Our preferred option – Adding pots, 

tubs and trays and food waste 

collection.  

371 

 

-1983 

 

-1612 

If HVO is used 37.1 -1983 -1946 

Vehicle Type / fuel Annual CO2e emissions in 
tonnes per vehicle 

Annual tCO2e for 9 
vehicles (full fleet) 

12t Diesel 24.68 222 

12t HVO 0.35 3.15 

12t Electric 0 0 

 

12.8 Electric food waste collection vehicles are becoming available but are in an 
early stage of introduction and are currently significantly more expensive with 
greater operational uncertainty and risk. These vehicles have not been in use 
for long enough to have a documented lifecycle or maintenance schedule. It is 
estimated that their lifecycle will be similar to diesel vehicles of the same 
specification, however, this has yet to be proved and tested. The incremental 
carbon savings from a vehicle running on HVO to a fully electric vehicle 
amounts to 0.35 tCO2e per year. While the Council recognises that the long-
term solution is likely to be full electrification, there is a benefit in waiting until 
the electric vehicle market for food waste vehicles matures, so that costs have 
stabilised, range has improved, and reliability of the vehicles has been 
established.   

12.9 Furthermore, an electric food waste vehicle currently costs more than double 
that of a diesel vehicle of the same size and specification. The capital funding 
allocated to Winchester City Council for food waste vehicles is based on 
diesel vehicles of a smaller specification than are required in a large rural 
district such as Winchester. The Council has challenged this allocation and 
made an official appeal in the hope that it could be increased in line with the 
government’s promise of providing ‘80% of reasonable costs.’  

Funding, Finance and Ownership: 

12.10 The required food waste vehicles will be procured by Biffa, on behalf of the 

Council, at an estimated cost of £1.34m.  DEFRA has allocated capital 

funding of £1.38m to Winchester City Council, for the purchase of assets 

required to deliver the new food waste collection service. As the vehicle costs 

fall within the funds allocated by DEFRA, the cost of this purchase can be 

taken from these funds. Details of all expected capital costs are set out in 

Table 2.5 above and in Appendix A. 

Page 29



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

12.11 It is intended that the Council will own the food waste vehicles and lease 

these to Biffa, at a peppercorn charge, for use in the food waste collections 

service. This will ensure that Biffa assume liability for maintenance and repair 

of these vehicles and if the contract is not extended in 2029, the vehicles will 

be returned to the council as a capital asset with an assumed net book value 

of circa £700,000. These vehicles can then be sold at market rate or utilised in 

a food waste service with another contractor.  

12.12 Conclusion The business case for purchase of HVO vehicles is attached at 
Appendix A and includes details of the options explored and financial 
appraisals. It concludes that there is strong business justification for the 
purchase of nine 12t specialist food waste vehicles to enable separate food 
waste collections to commence in line with the government deadline of 31st 
March 2026.  

12.13 Although the cost of vehicle procurement can be passed to the Council via the 
existing contract mechanism and charged over a longer period of time, 
financial appraisals have concluded that the most cost-effective solution for 
the procurement of these vehicles is for the Council to pay the capital 
purchase price as a lump-sum pass-through cost from Biffa.   

12.14 Biffa have agreed to procure the vehicles on behalf of the Council at cost, with 
no mark-up. This will allow the Council to benefit from Biffa’s extensive 
knowledge of this market, their superior buying power, their existing 
relationships with suppliers, as well as benefiting from their experiences and 
lessons learned elsewhere in the UK.  

12.15 The vehicles can then be leased back to Biffa for use in the food waste 
collections service ensuring that Biffa are liable for the maintenance and 
repair of these vehicles. If the contract is not extended in 2029, the vehicles 
will be returned to the council as a capital asset with a net book value of circa 
£700,000.  

13. Round rerouting and electric RCV procurement. 

13.1 To prepare for the changes to recycling collections, including food waste, and 
to rebalance routes following the growth of new housing in the district, Biffa 
has undertaken a re-routing exercise. The proposed re-route would result in a 
reduction in distances travelled equalling 35,000 miles per year, with new 
routes optimised for efficiency and the reduced milage providing an additional 
carbon saving of circa 13%.  It is intended that changes to the rounds 
because of the re-route will be implemented over the autumn period with 
residents given good notice of any changes affecting them, and the 
introduction of a bin collection notification system.  

13.2 The re-route exercise has identified the need for a new route and 
subsequently, a new vehicle. There is potential to introduce a fully electric 
recycling collection vehicle to the fleet, rather than one operated on HVO. This 
would be a helpful pilot vehicle with which to explore the practicalities of 

Page 30



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

operating an electric vehicle in a large district such as Winchester while the 
council explores opportunities to move towards a fully carbon neutral service. 

13.3 Electric RCVs have been in use for much longer than the food waste 
equivalent and as such are considered to be much more reliable. Additionally, 
these vehicles are manufactured by a single OEM (Original Equipment 
Manufacturer) rather than assembled using parts from multiple suppliers as 
food waste vehicles currently are. Biffa have confirmed that a suitable electric 
RCV could be added to the fleet in Winchester, subject to infrastructure 
requirements to charge it being in place. The details of the potential carbon 
savings are outlined below. However, it should be noted that although the 
difference in carbon between a diesel vehicle operated on HVO and a fully 
electric vehicle is relatively small, the learning opportunity to test the viability 
of full electrification may prove worth the investment. 

13.4 The Carbon footprint of a current frontline 26 tonne RCV per annum has been 
calculated in accordance with the DEFRA/DESNZ methodology to compare 
Diesel (DERV) versus HVO and electric. The amounts below are per vehicle 
per year: 

1. DERV RCV (conversion factor = 2.51 kg CO2e / l) = 40,784 kg CO2e  
2. HVO RCV (conversion factor = 0.03558 kg CO2e /l) = 578 kg CO2e 
3.   Electric RCV (conversion factor = 0) = 0 kg CO2e 

 
Electric RCV costs: 
 
13.5 Because the vehicle is required as part of the re-route exercise undertaken by 

Biffa, no additional cost would be incurred by the council if a diesel vehicle, 
operated on HVO, was added to the fleet. However, because the council is 
committed to understanding the best way to fully decarbonise the fleet in 
future, this report recommends an upgrade of this vehicle to an electric RCV.  

 
13.6 The council will be liable for the difference in cost between the two vehicle 

types. This can be incorporated into the contract cost and paid on an annual 
basis at an additional £36,000 per annum for the remainder of the existing 
contract term or for the full life of the vehicle if the contract is extended. If the 
contract with Biffa is not extended in 2029, Biffa will keep the vehicle and no 
further cost will be charged to the council. The Council will only be liable for 
the additional cost of the electric RCV while it is being used to service the 
existing waste and recycling contract.  

 
13.7 This additional revenue cost can be funded from existing revenue 

environment budgets.  
 

Infrastructure to charge the vehicle will be required and is set out in the next 
section below. 

 
Infrastructure for EV charging – capital investment 
 

Page 31



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

13.8 Both the council and Biffa have commissioned independent consultants to 
evaluate the electrical supply capacity at the Depot, and the work required to 
enable electric vehicles to be accommodated. The council has worked with 
the Association of Public Service Excellence (APSE) and Biffa have worked 
with Green Jam and both have concluded that although there is current 
capacity to accommodate a small number of AC charging units, the best 
option would be to future proof the depot and allow for a phased expansion to 
accommodate a full fleet of electric vehicles with DC charging capability in the 
longer term. Additionally, the electric RCV proposed by Biffa requires DC 
charging. This aligns with the proposed longer-term solution.   

 
Initial solution to allow charging of one electric RCV: 
 
13.9 Currently, capacity exists within the depot’s electricity supply to charge a 

single electric RCV using a mobile DC charging unit plugged into the existing 
supply in the workshop. This solution would be quick to instal and has a one-
off indicative capital cost of £30,000. It is recommended that this cost be 
approved, and the infrastructure installed as soon as possible to facilitate the 
new route in line with the proposed re-route taking place in September 2024. 

 
Long term future proof solution 
 
13.10 We have been advised by both external consultants that there is a ‘race’ to 

secure the remaining power available in the area and it would be wise to act 
as soon as possible to secure the necessary power for our future needs now, 
before it is allocated elsewhere.  

 
13.11 The Council is committed to electrification of the waste fleet as soon as 

practicable and therefore, it is proposed that a long-term solution to ensure 
supply is available when we need it be properly costed and submitted to 
Cabinet in the Autumn. This will involve a new substation and the necessary 
connection from SSE or an IDNO to enable DC charging to an EV fleet.  

 
13.12 It is estimated that this infrastructure will take 1 to 2 years to complete and 

should be started as soon as possible to minimise that chance of missing out 
on the limited number of connections available in this area.  

 
13.13 Further work is required to determine the best solution for the depot’s needs. 

This will be costed and submitted to a future Cabinet meeting in Autumn 
2024. 

 
14 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

14.1 The Council could procure the vehicles independently of Biffa. This option was 
previously rejected in CAB3439 because the council does not have the 
necessary buying power, knowledge nor understanding of the market. To 
purchase the vehicles, the Council would require advice on specification, 
identification of frameworks and would incur procurement costs. This could 

Page 32



  CAB3452 
 

 

 

cause a significant delay to purchasing the necessary vehicles and put the 
Council at risk of missing the government implementation deadline.  

14.2 The Council has considered Biffa purchasing and owning the food waste 
vehicles and passing the capital cost to the council through the existing contract 
mechanism. This would make the overall contract price more expensive.  This 
option has been rejected due to the increased costs this would incur. The 
council has received enough funding from DEFRA to pay these costs without 
the need for borrowing.  

14.3 The Council considered the provision of these vehicles on a contract hire basis 
for the remainder of the contract term. This option has been rejected due to the 
restriction on the grant funding from DEFRA which would not allow the funds to 
be used in this way. 

14.4 Wait until we know exactly what funding is available for the whole food waste 
service costs, capital and revenue. This option has been rejected because of 
the long lead-in time for vehicle delivery. This is currently 12 months but is 
expected to lengthen as demand for new vehicles begins to outstrip supply. 
The council has a duty to implement the new service before the deadline 
imposed by Government of 31st March 2026. The council is also keen to 
implement the new service because of the benefits it provides to residents, the 
climate and environment. Waiting until all the details have been worked out will 
put the council at significant risk of missing the government deadline for 
implementation. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:- 

Previous Committee Reports:- 

CAB3439 Waste and Recycling Strategy 08-02-2024 – pages 9 – 102 

CAB3439 Printed decisions 

Scrutiny Committee – YouTube link to meeting – The Scrutiny Committee. 06/06/24, 
6.30pm (youtube.com) 

Other Background Documents: - 

APPENDICES: 

Appendix A – Business Justification for Food Waste vehicle purchase 

Appendix B – Extract of Minutes of the Scrutiny Committee 6th June 2024.  

 
 

Page 33

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/g4297/Public%20reports%20pack%2008th-Feb-2024%2009.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/g4297/Decisions%2008th-Feb-2024%2009.30%20Cabinet.pdf?T=2
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=JhfJO6Z0X0U
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=JhfJO6Z0X0U


This page is intentionally left blank



CAB3452 Appendix A: 

Vehicle purchase business justification: 

Business justification for the proposed purchase of nine 12t specialist food waste 

vehicles is set out below. Assessments of finance, carbon reduction costs, depot 

infrastructure, availability, and reliability of vehicle options to introduce the new 

service has led the council to recommend the initial operation of food waste via HVO 

fuelled collection vehicles. The intention is that as reliability, infrastructure capacity 

and vehicle availability increase the food waste fleet will move over to electric 

vehicles.  

 

a. Strategic case: 

Implementing a separate food waste collection will allow full compliance with the 
requirements of the Environment Act 2021 as well as supporting a number of local, 
regional and national policies which encourage greater participation in recycling, 
reduction in carbon footprint and a healthier district for residents. It should be noted 
that this is a legal requirement not an optional service.  
 
Moreover, the introduction of the new food waste service aligns with Council 
priorities as set out below. 
 

Tackling the climate emergency and 

creating a greener district 

Strongly supports this priority 

Vibrant local economy Supports this priority 

Living well Supports this priority 

Your Service, Your Voice Supports this priority 

 

b. Economic case: 

Introducing a separate food waste recycling service will allow our residents to 
measure the amount of food waste they produce and take active steps to buy less 
and use more. This will save them money and result in reduced residual waste. Food 
waste that is incinerated as part of residual waste requires much more energy to 
burn due to the higher water content of this waste. Conversely, any food scraps that 
are recycled can contribute to the circular economy through anaerobic digestion to 
generate fuel or be composted to make soil improver. 
 
Simply recycling food waste could save the district circa 1,900 tCO2e per year.  
 
Along with introducing the new service, the project aims to implement an education 
and behaviour change campaign to support residents to access the new service and 
make the most of it – saving money, reducing waste and recycling more.  
 

Page 35



Summary of benefits: 
 

• Households save money by buying less and using more.  

• Residents reduce their carbon footprint by wasting less and recycling more. 

• Food waste is recycled to produce valuable fuel / gas and soil conditioner. 

• Improved partnership working and resource sharing with other Local 
Authorities to promote a joined-up message. 

• Recycling food waste could save the district circa 1,900 tCO2e per year. 
 
The social value of introducing a separate food waste collection service is high. But 
to achieve the benefits outlined above, there will be costs to the council. These are 
not necessarily direct financial costs but indirect costs such as: a commitment of time 
and effort to continue to run an effective service post-implementation and maintain a 
high standard of communications with residents to get the best recycling rates 
possible and to support residents to save money and reduce waste.  
 
Having established the benefits of starting to collect food waste for recycling, the 
Council commissioned the Association of Public Service Excellence (APSE) to 
review the vehicle models available for this type of service.  
 
After careful consideration of the available vehicles in the UK market, APSE 
concluded that the market for diesel and HVO operated vehicles is well established 
and offers substantial choice while only one supplier of electric food waste vehicles 
would be suitable to perform the rounds required in Winchester.  
 
Although this EV supplier is experienced in the EV market; it should be noted that 
they are not an OEM (Original Equipment Manufacturer) and as such, assemble the 
vehicles using a variety of manufactured parts rather than manufacturing the entire 
vehicle themselves. Consideration would need to be given to the warranty 
arrangements for such a vehicle.  
 
APSE compared the difference in whole life costs broken down for Diesel vehicles, 
Diesel vehicles using HVO fuel and Electric vehicles. This included anticipated fuel 
costs for the mileage to be covered annually, fixed overheads such as road tax and 
servicing, maintenance, parts, and labour as well as initial purchase price and 
interest payments.  
 
Because the vehicles are still very new to the market, the current lifespan of a 12.5t 
electric food waste truck remains untested, however, rental of these vehicles has an 
anticipated lifespan of 7 years. For this reason, the comparison was made over a 
vehicle lifespan of 7 years rather than the usual 8 years which is standard for diesel 
and HVO powered vehicles of this type.   
 
APSE concluded that there will be a cost premium in running electric vehicles, rather 
than diesel / HVO fuelled vehicles. The difference is set out below: 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



Table 1 Vehicle whole life costs 
 

Vehicle and fuel type Total Vehicle Costs over 7 years 

12t Diesel fuel £374,628  

12t HVO fuel  £397,070  

12.5t Electric  £515,232  

 
 
The cost of the vehicles is not the only consideration the Council has given to the 
vehicle type. It has also reviewed the availability of a power supply at the depot to 
charge electric vehicles. Following a thorough review of the available supply, the 
Council has been informed that only a small number of electric vehicles could be 
accommodated using the current power supply, with an additional cost of circa 
£50,000 to cover the infrastructure costs.  
 
To allow a full fleet of EV’s to charge at the depot in future, it is likely that a new sub-
station and an increased power supply will need to be installed/ secured. This would 
constitute a significant capital investment, is not totally within the council’s control 
and requires further investigation.   
 
The reliability of the vehicles is another factor that is considered vital to the decision 
on vehicle type. Diesel vehicles using HVO have been in use for many years and 
have well documented lifecycle and maintenance schedules. Should a breakdown 
occur, the parts are readily available, and maintenance could be completed in-
house. Electric vehicles of this type are not old enough to have completed a full 
lifecycle and do not have a complete documented maintenance schedule.  
 
To understand the implications of this and gather further evidence, the Council has 
contacted other local authorities who are using these electric food waste trucks. 
Although the feedback regarding the supplier was very positive, we were cautioned 
to allow extra time for repairs as these could often take longer than for diesel 
vehicles and may require specialist services. We were also cautioned to have diesel 
vehicles as spares / back up to allow suitable cover if the electric vehicles 
encountered issues during the first few months of operations, which was commonly 
reported. Biffa has also said that they would not take responsibility for the associated 
risks of having electric food waste vehicles, this risk and liability would therefore sit 
with the council should issues occur. 
 
These reliability concerns around electric vehicles will likely be resolved in time as 
the vehicle market matures and more vehicles of this type are produced and refined.  
 
However, in light of the considerable carbon savings/environmental benefits as well 
as social benefits associated with providing a food waste recycling service, having a 
reliable service using dependable, tried and tested and readily available vehicles 
operated on a low carbon fuel is considered the best approach.   
 
Options have been reviewed and ranked in a table as set out below. This clearly 
demonstrates that although the council is on a journey to full electrification of the 
waste fleet, a service operated on HVO will provide excellent carbon savings and a 
reliable interim solution while electric vehicles are further developed.  

Page 37



Table 2 Options appraisal – Types of vehicles: 
 

Option 

Indicative 
Capital Costs 
+ 10% 
contingency 

Carbon 
emissions  

Service vehicle 
reliability  

Risk of not 
achieving 
timescale  

Additional costs 
of 
implementation  

Total  

 Maximum 
score 

3 3 3 3 3 15 

1 HVO x 9 
9 x HVO = 
£1,336,500 

3.15 tCO2e 
per year (9 
x 12t HVO) 

HVO operated 
vehicles are very 
reliable, tried and 
tested. 

Standard 
vehicles with 
multiple 
manufacturers.  

No additional 
infrastructure 
costs 13 

    3 1 3 3 3 

2 
Elec x 2, 
+ 7 x 
HVO 

£699,600 (2 
x EV) + 
£1,039,500 
(7 x HVO) = 
£1,739,100 

2.45 tCO2e 
per year (7 
x 12t HVO) 

2 EVs is slightly 
better than 3 but 
still increases risk 
of service 
disruption as they 
are an untested 
system.  

Only one 
company 
supplying EVs. 
Risk slightly 
reduced due to 
fewer EVs.   

£50k for EV 
infrastructure. 
Additional costs 
to de-risk Biffa. 

9 

    2 2 2 2 1 

3 
Elec x 3 
+ 6 x 
HVO 

£1,049,400 
(3 x EV) + 
£891,000 (6 
x HVO) = 
£1,940,400 

2.1 tCO2e 
per year (6 
x 12t HVO) 

3 EVs increases 
risk of service 
disruption as they 
are an untested 
system.  

Only one 
company 
supplying EVs. 
Higher risk due 
to more EVs. 

£50k for EV 
infrastructure. 
Additional costs 
to de-risk Biffa – 
more EVs 
results in more 
costs. 

7 

    1 3 1 1 1 

 

c. Commercial case: 

The Council currently has a long-term contract with Biffa for all its waste collection 
services. To make the most of Biffa’s superior buying power and well-established 
supply chain, it is proposed that Biffa procure the vehicles required for the food 
waste service. Under the existing contract, Biffa are responsible for the acquisition 
and maintenance of all vehicles. It is proposed that Biffa will also procure the bins 
and caddies required for the service. 
 
The council have received grant funding towards the capital costs of the new food 
waste service (vehicles and bins) and will use this funding to pay the capital costs of 
the vehicles and other assets necessary for the service from Biffa. Because the 
funding from DERFA does not cover all the costs necessary for the new service, the 
council proposes to top up the payment using the capital allocation of £1.78m which 
was set aside for 25/26 for this purpose. The capital cost for the food waste vehicles 
will be re-charged to the council by Biffa at cost with no additional mark up. 
 

Page 38



d. Financial case: 

In April 2024 the council received £1,382,034 of non-ringfenced capital funding to 
support the purchase of capital assets required for the new food waste service under 
the New Burdens Doctrine. Although the amount allocated does not cover all the 
costs, it does subsidise the allocated £1.78m set aside in the council’s budget for 
25/26.  
 
The costs reported in this business case fall within the agreed budget and are set out 
in full below. It should be noted that although the indicative costs for bins and 
caddies are included these are not going to be purchased until 2025. The table 
below demonstrates that all the capital costs, vehicles, bins and caddies as well as 
infrastructure to charge 1 electric RCV can be afforded through the capital allocation 
of £1.78m mentioned above. 
 
Options considered: 
Biffa have provided estimated costs based on the following three options for 
procuring the new food waste vehicles: 
 

a) Biffa procure but the Council own the food waste vehicles and lease these 
to Biffa for use in the new service. 

b) Biffa procure and own the food waste vehicles, although these would have 
to transfer to the Council should the Council not extend the current 
contract which would incur further costs. 

c) A short-term lease of the vehicles is arranged. 
 

When considering the additional costs involved in options b and c it is recommended 
to proceed with option a – the Council owning the food waste vehicles. This is a 
change to the current contract where a price is charged per household inclusive of 
vehicle and financing costs. 
 
Table 3 - Financial Appraisal of options considered: 
 

Food Waste Vehicle Purchase options 
Costs to 2029 
(£m) 

Costs to 2033 
(£m) 

Option 1 - WCC purchase the 9 food waste 
vehicles 0.185  0.319  

Option 2 - Biffa purchase the 9 food waste vehicles 0.233  0.785  

Option 3 - Biffa lease the 9 food waste vehicles 0.480  1.578  

 
Assumptions used in the above estimates: 
 

a) In order to evaluate all options on the same basis option 1 is forecast 
based on prudential borrowing. If the government funding is allocated to 
the vehicles in full then there would be no borrowing requirement. 

b) Options 2 and 3 are estimated using a forecast annual inflation uplift of 3% 
and household growth of 2%. This is because the contract is based on a £ 
figure per household which is then inflated on a monthly basis for 
household growth and annual basis for inflation. 

Page 39



c) It is assumed that the government funding could be utilised in option 3. 
Current guidance states that the funding must be used for capital 
expenditure, and this would rule out the option. Additional clarification is 
being sought from Defra. 

 
It has been assumed at this stage that all of the government grant funding will be 
applied to the food waste vehicles rather than in line with the splits provided 
alongside the confirmation of funding. This will be reviewed further before the 
vehicles are delivered and paid for in 2025. The table above also assumes that 
options 2 and 3 are uplifted annually by forecast increases in contract inflation of 3% 
and household growth of 2%. 

 

Table 4 - Recommended options including additional capital asset costs: 

Capital Asset Estimated cost 

plus contingency 

Vehicles  £1,336,500 

kitchen caddies £86,730 

kerbside caddies £221,760 

communal food waste collection bins £85,313 

Infrastructure to support 1 EV £30,000 

Total capital costs £1,760,303 

 

e. Management case: 

This project is managed in accordance with the project and programme methodology 
used by Winchester City Council. This is adapted from Prince2, APM and the Better 
Business Cases Method. All governance requirements are satisfied through regular 
Team and Board meetings as well as quarterly submission of highlight reports to the 
Programme and Capital Strategy Board (PAC), Scrutiny Committee and 
Performance Panel. 

Conclusion: 

There is strong business justification for the purchase of nine 12t specialist food 
waste vehicles to enable separate food waste collections to commence in line with 
the government deadline of 31st March 2026.  

Although the cost of vehicle procurement can be passed to the Council via the 
existing contract mechanism and charged over a longer period of time, financial 
appraisals have concluded that the most cost-effective solution for the procurement 

Page 40



of these vehicles is for the Council to pay the capital purchase price as a lump-sum 
pass-through cost from Biffa.   

Biffa have agreed to procure the vehicles on behalf of the Council at cost, with no 
mark-up. This will allow the Council to benefit from Biffa’s extensive knowledge of 
this market, their superior buying power, their existing relationships with suppliers, as 
well as benefiting from their experiences and lessons learned elsewhere in the UK.  

The vehicles can then be leased back to Biffa for use in the food waste collections 
service. Biffa will be liable for maintenance and repair of these vehicles and if the 
contract is not extended in 2029, the vehicles will be returned to the council as a 
capital asset with a net book value of circa £700,000. These vehicles can then be 
sold at market rate or utilised in a food waste service with another contractor.  

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



CAB3452 - Appendix B 

 
Draft minute extract from Scrutiny Committee held 6 June 2024 
 

   PROCUREMENT OF WASTE & RECYCLING COLLECTION VEHICLES / 
UPDATE ON WASTE AND RECYCLING. (PRESENTATION)  

 
Simon Hendey, Strategic Director & Councillor Learney, Cabinet Member for Climate 
Emergency introduced the agenda item regarding Procurement of Waste & 
Recycling Collection Vehicles.   
 
Simon Hendey advised of the urgent and critical nature of this agenda item which 
required a decision by Cabinet during the pre-election period and outlined the 
primary reasons for this urgency as follows: 
 

1. In February 2024, the Cabinet considered a report regarding the introduction 
of a food waste service and officers were tasked with progressing the 
implementation of this service, emphasising the pursuit of the lowest carbon 
viable option. This included specifically focusing on the procurement of 
vehicles necessary to support the new service. 

2. The government had set a deadline of April 2026 for the implementation of the 
food waste service. Therefore, timely procurement of the necessary vehicles 
was essential to meet this deadline. A decision was required to facilitate the 
procurement process, thus the need for this report to be presented to the 
Cabinet on 19 June 2024  

 
Councillor Learney, Cabinet Member for Climate Emergency updated the committee 
on the following points: 
 

1. The administration aimed to expand the range of materials recyclable at the 
kerbside in a financially prudent and practical way. 

2. The council was in a favourable position compared to other councils to 
provide a food waste service by the end of March 2026. 

3. Extensive consultations on the waste strategy had been conducted, receiving 
responses from thousands of residents. 

4. Collaboration with experts was undertaken to carry out technical studies and 
research, alongside budget allocation for the project. 

5. Emphasis was placed on avoiding delays in the procurement process to 
prevent falling behind other councils in ordering new vehicles. 

6. Detailed planning for the service rollout, including addressing issues such as 
servicing flats and difficult-to-reach areas, would take place in the autumn. 

7. The current focus was on procuring vehicles, and input from the scrutiny 
committee was welcomed before the final decision by the Cabinet. 

 
Campbell Williams, Service Lead - Environmental Services provided the committee 
with a detailed presentation, which discussed several matters including the 
previously confirmed decisions to date, the key elements of a food waste service, an 
overview of the modelling that supports the procurement decision of vehicle choice 
and costs, implications of current and future depot infrastructure requirements, the 
proposed introduction of an electric refuse refuse collection vehicle (RCV), the next 

Page 43



CAB3452 - Appendix B 

steps with respect to food waste collection and the journey to zero avoidable waste. 
(A copy of these slides are available here) 
 
Councillor Caroline Horrill addressed the committee and highlighted the following 
points: 
 

1. She sought clarification on the following: 

• Confirmation that the food waste would go to anaerobic digestion (AD) 
plants within Hampshire. 

• The impact on current services like battery and small electrical 
collections and whether these would continue unaffected. 

• The expected lifespan of the recommended vehicles. 

• The future of the depot infrastructure given discussions about 
disposing of the current depot. 

• The handling of round changes and the communication strategy for 
these changes. 

• Capacity considerations for the anticipated growth in the number of 
houses in the district. 

2. She inquired about the costs to be proposed in the Cabinet paper for the 
procurement of vehicles. 

3. She emphasised the importance of effective communication with residents 
regarding changes, particularly the introduction of new waste services like 
pots, trays, and tubs. 

 
These points were responded to by Councillor Learney, Cabinet Member for Climate 
Emergency, Campbell Williams, Service Lead - Environmental Services and Andy 
Hickman, Head of Programme: Place.  
 
Councillor Danny Lee addressed the committee and highlighted the following points: 
 

1. He expressed enthusiasm for the electric vehicle (EV) trial and the potential to 
learn from other areas like Manchester, which had significant experience with 
EV fleets. 

2. He raised concerns about the long-term environmental impact of the vehicle 
procurement, particularly regarding the full lifecycle greenhouse gas 
emissions. 

3. He questioned the flexibility within the procurement contracts to adapt to 
rapidly changing technology and environmental standards. 

4. He raised concerns about the sustainability and supply of hydrotreated 
vegetable oil (HVO), particularly the potential indirect environmental impacts 
related to its production. 

5. He emphasised the need for a risk register to address potential future supply 
chain and environmental risks. 

 
These points were responded to by Councillor Learney, Cabinet Member for Climate 
Emergency, Campbell Williams, Service Lead - Environmental Services and Andy 
Hickman, Head of Programme: Place.  
 
The committee proceeded to ask questions and debate the report. In summary, the 
following matters were raised: 

Page 44

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=348&MId=4606


CAB3452 - Appendix B 

 
1. Clarification on the decision-making process and the urgency of the 

procurement. 
2. The costs associated with the kitchen caddies and whether these would be 

provided free of charge to households. 
3. The use of solar panels on vehicles and whether this could enhance fuel 

efficiency. 
4. The potential benefits of mixing hydrogen with diesel for better environmental 

performance. 
5. The feasibility of the council establishing its own anaerobic digester for 

kitchen waste. 
6. Clarification on the proportion of residual waste that was food waste and the 

overall strategy to reduce this waste. 
7. The potential for increased vehicle movements and how this would be 

managed alongside existing collections. 
8. The infrastructure requirements for electric vehicles and the steps taken to 

secure necessary power supplies. 
9. Clarification as to why detailed costings and a comprehensive business case 

for the procurement was not available. 
10. The estimated CO2 savings from the new vehicles the basis for these 

calculations and whether the cost of construction had been considered 
11. The anticipated government funding and its reliability of being provided. 
12. The alignment of the waste strategy with national recycling targets and future 

statutory obligations. 
 
These points were responded to by Councillor Cutler, Deputy Leader and Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Performance, Councillor Learney, Cabinet Member for 
Climate Emergency, Campbell Williams, Service Lead - Environmental Services, 
Andy Hickman, Head of Programme: Place and Simon Hendey, Strategic Director. 
 

RESOLVED: 

The committee agreed to recommend that the Cabinet consider 
implementing education programmes to encourage composting and food waste 
reduction alongside the new collection services. 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



 
   

   

 

 

 

Forward Plan of Key Decisions 
 

1 July 2024 – 30 September 2024 
 
This document sets out key decisions to be taken within the next 28 days, together with any key decision by individual Members of 
the Cabinet and officers. It also includes potential key decisions beyond that period, though this is not comprehensive and items will 
be confirmed in the publication of the key decisions document 28 days before a decision is taken. 
 
Key Decisions are those which are financially significant or which have a significant impact.  This has been decided, by the Council, 
to be decisions which involve income or expenditure over £250,000 or which will have a significant effect on people or 
organisations in two or more wards.  
 
The majority of decisions are taken by Cabinet, together with the individual Cabinet Members, where appropriate.  The membership 
of Cabinet and its meeting dates can be found via this link. Other decisions may be taken by Cabinet Committees, Cabinet 
Members or Officers in accordance with the Officers’ Scheme of Delegation, as agreed by the Council. 
 
Whilst the majority of the Cabinet’s business at the meetings listed in this document will be open to the public, there will be 
occasions when the business to be considered contains confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information. The items of 
business where this is likely to apply are indicated on the plan.  
 
This is formal notice under The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 
Regulations 2012 that part of the Cabinet meetings listed in this document may be held in private because the agenda and reports 
for the meeting will contain exempt information under Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) and 
that the public interest in withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it.  
 
If you have any representations as to why the meeting should be held in private, then please contact the Council via 
democracy@winchester.gov.uk .  Please follow this link to the Council’s Constitution which includes a definition of the 
paragraphs (Access to Information Procedure Rules, Part 4 paragraph 8.4) detailing why a matter may be classed as exempt from 
publication under the Local Government Acts, and not available to the public. 

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 9

https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=136
mailto:democracy@winchester.gov.uk
https://democracy.winchester.gov.uk/documents/g2032/Public%20reports%20pack%2001st-Jan-2024%20The%20Councils%20Constitution.pdf?T=10&Info=1


Anyone who wishes to make representations about any item included in the Plan please contact the Democratic Services Team 
prior to the meeting to make your request.  Copies of documents listed in the Plan for submission to a decision taker are available 
for inspection on the Council’s website.  Where the document is a committee report, it will usually be available five days before the 
meeting.  Other documents relevant to the decision may also be submitted to the decision maker and are available on Council’s 
website or via email democracy@winchester.gov.uk. 
 
Please note that the decision dates are indicative and occasionally subject to change.  
 
If you have any queries regarding the operation or content of the Forward Plan please contact David Blakemore (Democratic 
Services Team Manager) on 01962 848 217. 
 

P
age 48

mailto:democracy@winchester.gov.uk


 

 

 Item Cabinet 
Member 

Key 
Decision 

Wards 
Affected 

Lead 
Officer 

Documents 
submitted to 
decision taker 

Decision 
taker 
(Cabinet, 
Cabinet 
Member or 
Officer 

Date/period 
decision to 
be taken 

Committee 
Date (if 
applicable) 

Open/private 
meeting or 
document? If 
private meeting, 
include relevant 
exempt 
paragraph 
number 

Section A 
Decisions made by Cabinet & Cabinet committees 

1   Land 
transaction (if 
required) 

Cabinet 
Member 
for Asset 
Manage-
ment 
 

Yes All 
Wards 

Geoff 
Coe 

Cabinet report Cabinet Jul-24 16-Jul-24 Part exempt 
3 

2   Q1 Finance & 
Performance 
Monitoring 

Cabinet 
Member 
for Finance 
and Perfor-
mance 
 

Yes All 
Wards 

Simon 
Howson 

Cabinet report Cabinet Sep-24 11-Sep-24 Open 
 

3   Housing 
Revenue 
Account 
outturn 23/24 

Cabinet 
Member 
for 
Housing 
 

Yes All 
Wards 

Liz Keys Cabinet report Cabinet Sep-24 11-Sep-24 Open 
 

4   General Fund 
outturn 23/24 

Cabinet 
Member 
for Finance 
and Perfor-
mance 

Yes All 
Wards 

Liz Keys Cabinet report Cabinet Sep-24 11-Sep-24 Open 
 

P
age 49



 

 Item Cabinet 
Member 

Key 
Decision 

Wards 
Affected 

Lead 
Officer 

Documents 
submitted to 
decision taker 

Decision 
taker 
(Cabinet, 
Cabinet 
Member or 
Officer 

Date/period 
decision to 
be taken 

Committee 
Date (if 
applicable) 

Open/private 
meeting or 
document? If 
private meeting, 
include relevant 
exempt 
paragraph 
number 

Section B 
Decisions made by individual Cabinet Members 

5   Public Art 
Strategy for 
West of 
Waterlooville  

Cabinet 
Member 
for 
Business & 
Culture 

Yes Denmead; 
Southwick 
& 
Wickham 

Andrew 
Gostelow 

Cabinet 
Member 
decision report 

Cabinet 
Member 
for 
Business & 
Culture 
Decision 
Day 
 

Jul-24 16-Jul-24 
(tbc) 

Open 
 

6   Cashless 
Payment 
Procurement  

Cabinet 
Member 
for Climate 
Emergency 

Yes All 
Wards 

Andy 
Hickman 

Cabinet 
Member 
decision report 

Cabinet 
Member 
for Climate 
Emergency 
Decision 
Day 
 

Jul-24 16-Jul-24 
(tbc) 

Open 
 

Section C 
Decisions made by Officers 

8   Treasury 
Management - 
decisions in 
accordance 
with the 
Council's 
approved 

Cabinet 
Member 
for Finance 
and Perfor-
mance 

Yes All 
Wards 

Desig-
nated 
HCC 
Finance 
staff, 
daily 

Designated 
working 
papers 

Designated 
HCC 
Finance 
staff, daily 

Jul-24 Jul-24 Open 
 

P
age 50



 

 Item Cabinet 
Member 

Key 
Decision 

Wards 
Affected 

Lead 
Officer 

Documents 
submitted to 
decision taker 

Decision 
taker 
(Cabinet, 
Cabinet 
Member or 
Officer 

Date/period 
decision to 
be taken 

Committee 
Date (if 
applicable) 

Open/private 
meeting or 
document? If 
private meeting, 
include relevant 
exempt 
paragraph 
number 

strategy and 
policy 

Section D 
Proposed budget timetable 2024/25 

*Not classed as key decisions as final decision taken by full Council 

9   General Fund 
Budget 
Options & 
Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy 
 

Cabinet 
Member 
for Finance 
and Perfor-
mance 

Yes All 
Wards 

Liz Keys Cabinet report Cabinet Nov-24 20-Nov-24 Open 
 

10   General Fund 
budget 
2025/26* 

Cabinet 
Member 
for Finance 
and Perfor-
mance 

No All 
Wards 

Liz Keys Cabinet report Cabinet 
 
Council 

Feb-25 
 
 

12-Feb-25 
 
27-Feb-25 

Open 
 

11   Housing 
Revenue 
Account 
budget 
2025/26* 

Cabinet 
Member 
for 
Housing 

No All 
Wards 

Liz Keys Cabinet report Cabinet 
Committee
: Housing 
 
Cabinet 
 
Council 

Feb-25 
 
 

3-Feb-25 
 
 
 
12-Feb-25 
 
27-Feb-25 
 

Open 
 

12   Capital 
investment 

Cabinet 
Member 

No All 
Wards 

Liz Keys Cabinet report Cabinet 
 

Feb-25 
 

12-Feb-25 
 

Open 
 

P
age 51



 

 Item Cabinet 
Member 

Key 
Decision 

Wards 
Affected 

Lead 
Officer 

Documents 
submitted to 
decision taker 

Decision 
taker 
(Cabinet, 
Cabinet 
Member or 
Officer 

Date/period 
decision to 
be taken 

Committee 
Date (if 
applicable) 

Open/private 
meeting or 
document? If 
private meeting, 
include relevant 
exempt 
paragraph 
number 

Strategy 2025 
- 2035* 

for Finance 
and Perfor-
mance 
 

Council  27-Feb-25 

P
age 52


	Agenda
	6 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 22 May 2024
	8 Procurement of Waste & Recycling Collection Vehicles
	CAB3452 Appendix A
	CAB3452 - Appendix B Minute extract from Scrutiny Committee

	9 To note the future items for consideration by Cabinet as shown on the July 2024 Forward Plan.

